
 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk 

Community 
Governance Review 
Working Group  

     
 

 

Tuesday, 12 July 2022 at 10.00 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House,  

St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

 

Committee 
Members: 

 

Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Louise Clack (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor John Cottier, Councillor Nikki Manterfield, Councillor Annie Mason, 
Councillor Charmaine Morgan, Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley, Councillor Ian Selby, 
Councillor Jacky Smith, Councillor Lee Steptoe, Councillor Adam Stokes, Councillor 
Dean Ward, Councillor Hilary Westropp, Councillor Mark Whittington and Councillor 
Ray Wootten 
 

Agenda 
 

Please note this meeting is available to Join by Zoom using the following link: 
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86268334249?pwd=cGp6cSszQ3FQSjBDNjY0ajM1YzZ1QT09 

 
1.   Apologies for absence 

 
 

2.   Disclosure of Interests 
 

 

3.   Notes from the meeting held on 29 April 2022 
 

(Pages 3 - 6) 

4.   Community Governance Review for Grantham 
To confirm the scope of the next stage of further consultation in respect of a 
proposed boundary for the proposed new parish of Grantham. 

(Pages 7 - 13) 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/86268334249?pwd=cGp6cSszQ3FQSjBDNjY0ajM1YzZ1QT09


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Community Governance Review 
Working Group 
 

Friday, 29 April 2022, 10.00 am 

                  
Council Chamber - South Kesteven 
House, St. Peter's Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 

 

 

Committee Members present 
 
Councillor Louise Clack (Vice-Chairman) 
Councillor Graham Jeal (Chairman) 
Councillor Kaffy Rice-Oxley 
Councillor Ian Selby 
Councillor Lee Steptoe 
Councillor Adam Stokes 
Councillor Mark Whittington 
Councillor Ray Wootten 
 
Other Members in attendance 
 
Councillor Linda Wootten 
 
Officers in attendance 
 
Graham Watts (Assistant Director of Governance (Deputy Monitoring Officer)) 
Julie Edwards (Electoral Services Manager) 
Deb Wyles (Consultation and Engagement Officer) 
Lucy Bonshor (Democratic Officer) 
Alice Atkins (Project Lead) 

 
 

 

25. Apologies for absence 
 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Mason, Councillor Ward and 
Councillor Manterfield. 

 
26. Disclosure of Interests 

 
Councillor Whittington declared a disclosure of interest as a member of Barrowby 
Parish Council. 

 
27. Notes from the meeting held on 14 March 2022 

 
The notes from the meeting held on 14 March 2022 were proposed, seconded and 
AGREED as a correct record, subject to the following amendment to paragraph 2 
on page 6 of the agenda (amendment in bold): 

 

3

Agenda Item 3



‘Some Members felt that responses needed to meet or exceed the 2,000 mark in 
order for them to make an informed decision and it was suggested that Members of 
the Working Group be emailed weekly with the number of responses received.’ 
 
Councillor Whittington requested it be formally recorded that he had voted against 
this amendment.  

 
28. Overview of the Process for the Community Governance Review 

 
The Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer provided an 
overview of the process for the Community Governance Review. A range of 
organisations had been contacted (listed in the minutes from the meeting held on 
14 March 2022) and these included 6 Parish Councils, 14 Lincolnshire County 
Councillors who represented divisions within the South Kesteven area, all 56 South 
Kesteven Councillors and the two Members of Parliament for the area. The CGR 
consultation was available to be completed either in hard copy or on-line and a total 
of 1,472 responses had been received to the consultation, which in the context of 
the defined area was high. 
 
The Assistant Director of Governance further noted that the meeting formed part of 
the first stage in this process which had involved a consultation seeking to address 
the question of whether there should or should not be a parish or town council in 
Grantham as well as the boundary arrangements and number of Councillors 
relating to a such a council. Any recommendations agreed would be presented to 
Full Council on 26th May which would consider whether it wished to take a proposal 
to consultation as part of the next stage of the Community Governance Review.  
 
The Assistant Director of Governance thanked the Community Governance review 
team for their hard work throughout the process 

 
29. Results of the Community Governance Review Consultation 

 
The Chairman proposed that the Working Group address the results to Question 1 
first and then subsequently address the results of the remaining questions as there 
was less clarity in respect of Question 2 onwards in respect of the boundaries. 
 
The Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer provided an 
overview of the results of the Community Governance Review consultation. Overall, 
when questioned whether a parish or town council should be set up to serve the 
town of Grantham, 66.17% responses had answered ‘Yes’, 20.31% had answered 
‘No’ and 13.52% had answered ‘Don’t know/not sure’. It was noted that the 
responses to all other questions as well as all commentary was set out in the 
agenda pack.  
 
Concern was expressed that some of those who had responded to the survey did 
not know what authority a town or parish Council held. It was also expressed that 
those who had responded to the survey were likely to be the most politically 
engaged citizens and would therefore be well informed on the review. 
 
Further concern was expressed over the validity of the results as there appeared to 
be duplicated answers within them. The Chairman responded that work was being 
undertaken by Democratic Services to factor any duplicated responses out, and 
that the vast majority of these responses had answered ‘Don’t know/not sure’ to 

4



question 1, thus the removal of these results would not alter the overall preference 
for ‘Yes’. 

 
It was remarked that other local authorities had implemented town or parish 
councils following consultation with less than 1% response rate, and that the turnout 
for the survey in discussion had been 6.4%. Other Members felt that this turnout 
percentage was still too low to provide a mandate for any decision. 
 
The need for a referendum, rather than a survey, was communicated by some 
Members who felt that the survey had not obtained accurate data and that a 
referendum would be more democratic. Other Members felt that residents would be 
unfavourable to discarding the survey results. The Working Group discussed the 
potential costs of holding a referendum and costing for different options ranged 
from £25,000 to £50,000. 
 
There was debate as to the extent the 66% response for ‘Yes’ could be considered 
as an outcome for a parish or town council based on the results received. 
 
One Member thanked the Electoral Services Manager and the Consultation and 
Engagement Officer for the support they had provided him with throughout the 
process.  
 
Members discussed the comments provided by responders within the survey 
response data. It was noted that there was a significant number of positive 
comments regarding the implementation of a town or parish council, but also a 
number of comments expressing concern for the cost this would entail.  
 
The Chairman noted that he had categorised the comments into 6 categories: 
negative with a reason (approximately 10%), negative without a reason 
(approximately 5%), positive without a reason (approximately 15%), positive with a 
reason approximately 55%), didn’t understand the process (approximately 3%), 
concern about the process (approximately 8%). He stated that he felt that there was 
still considerable work to be done in respect of the boundaries for a parish or town 
council.   
 
Support for a town or parish council in Grantham was expressed by some Members 
who cited that it would allow all SKDC residents to operate on a level playing field, it 
would be important for engagement at a local level and it would provide another 
layer of democracy people can access. It was also expressed that 99% of 
metropolitan towns in England currently had parish or town councils whilst just 13 
other towns across England operated under the Chartered Trustees model of 
governance. Other Members felt that the establishment of a town or parish council 
should not take place unless a unitary authority was implemented.  
 
The costs of a town or parish council were discussed. It was noted that other town 
councils had reported that their costs had been higher than expected and concern 
was expressed that town councils might not maintain services to the same level as 
district councils could. 

 
(An adjournment took place between 11:10 and 11:20). 
 
Following the adjournment discussion on the boundary and warding arrangements 
took place. One Member put forward a proposal to utilise the unparished area as 
the boundary for a Parish or Town Council for Grantham which was seconded.  

5



Further discussion followed and it was felt that more work was needed to be done 
in respect of where a Parish or Town boundary for Grantham should be, especially 
in relation to the parishes that sat on the outskirts of Grantham, as opinions were 
not clear from the consultation results. 
 
A question was asked about the timetable and the Assistant Director of Governance 
and Deputy Monitoring Officer replied that there was no fixed timetable as the 
Council itself had instigated the Community Governance Review.  He advised that if 
the decision was deferred for another year any established parish or town council 
would then sync with the existing parish council election cycle.  
 
It was noted that consideration ought to be made to existing surcharges 
neighbouring village residents had to pay when using Grantham facilities. It was 
suggested that Democratic Services be authorised to engage in further dialogue 
with neighbouring communities around these anomalies.  

 
Members expressed concerns relating to rushing the process through rather than 
extending the review deadline to engage further with residents.  
 
Following the debate, the proposer amended his proposal that further consultation 
in respect of the proposed boundary arrangements for a Grantham Parish or Town 
Council took place, particularly with residents and Parish Councils in the 
neighbouring parishes.  

 
30. Draft Recommendations to Full Council 

 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED that the following recommendation be 
made to Full Council: 
 
That the Community Governance Review Working Group recommends to Full 
Council the establishment of a Parish Council for Grantham, in principle, and that 
the Assistant Director of Governance be authorised to undertake further 
consultation in respect of the proposed boundary arrangements, particularly with 
residents and Parish Councils of the neighbouring parishes to the unparished area 
of Grantham. 

 
31. Close of meeting 

 
The Chairman closed the meeting at 11.58. 

 
 

6



 

 

 

Community Governance 
Review Working Group 
18 July 2022 
 
Report by Councillor Linda Wootten, Cabinet Member 
for Corporate Governance and Licensing 

         

  

  

Community Governance Review for Grantham 

To confirm the scope of the next stage of further consultation in respect of a proposed boundary 
for the proposed new parish of Grantham.  

 

Report Author 

Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance and Deputy Monitoring Officer  

  Graham.watts@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Regulatory Two or more Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Julie Edwards (Electoral Services Manager) 28 June 2022 

Approved by: Alan Robinson (Deputy Chief Executive and 
Monitoring Officer) 

1 July 2022 

Signed off by: Councillor Linda Wootten (Cabinet Member for 
Corporate Governance and Licensing) 

1 July 2022 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

That the Community Governance Review Working Group: 

1. Confirms the scope of the next stage of further consultation with residents of 
neighbouring parishes and Parish Councils to the currently unparished area of 
Grantham in respect of a proposed boundary for the proposed new parish of 
Grantham. 

2. Defers reconsideration of the Terms of Reference in relation to the timeline for the 
Community Governance Review until the requirements of the consultation process 
set out in 1 above have been developed, mapped out and agreed by the Working 
Group.  

 

7

Agenda Item 4

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 Full Council, at its meeting on 26 May 2022, agreed in principle to the establishment of a 

Parish Council for Grantham, subject to undertaking further consultation with residents of 

neighbouring parishes and Parish Councils to consider its boundary. 

1.2 Full Council also noted that the Community Governance Review Working Group will 

reconsider the Terms of Reference in relation to the timeline for the review and give due 

consideration to the format and process of the next stage of the consultation. 

1.3 The purpose of this report is to confirm a scope for the next stage of the consultation, 

which will consist of engagement with residents of neighbouring parishes to the currently 

unparished area of Grantham, together with respective Parish Councils. 

1.4 It is recommended that reconsideration of the review’s Terms of Reference be deferred 

until the scope of this consultation process is finalised and can be properly incorporated 

into a revised timetable and Terms of Reference. 

2 Scoping of Consultation 

2.1 The outcome of the consultation process undertaken earlier this year, whilst providing a 

clear preference as to whether or not a Parish or Town Council should be established, did 

not necessarily provide the Working Group or Full Council with a strong enough mandate 

with which to make proposals regarding a boundary for a new Parish or Town Council for 

Grantham. 

2.2 Appendix 1 to the report outlines the currently unparished area of Grantham. 

2.3 Appendix 2 to the report outlines the existing district council boundaries, parish 

boundaries, sites where planning permission is permitted for development and areas of 

land allocated for housing. 

2.4 Based upon previous considerations of the Working Group and feedback received as part 

of the first consultation process, a key element of the further consultation with residents 

and Parish Councils is the location of the boundary, taking into account growth areas and 

development sites which may or may not wish to be considered as part of the town of 

Grantham as opposed to their existing parishes. 

2.5 It is recommended that the Working Group at its meeting on 12 July 2022 discusses those 

growth and development areas on the periphery of the existing ward boundary and 

identifies which residents it may wish to engage with as part of the further consultation 

process. 

2.6 The use of drop-in sessions or workshops in the communities identified would be an 

appropriate forum by which to engage directly with residents and confirm their views on 

the location of a proposed boundary for Grantham. This would provide opportunities for 

questions to be raised and answers provided, which cannot necessarily be achieved via a 

formal consultation document. Residents could also be asked a range of specific 

questions which could be facilitated via an informal survey or ballot. If this was something 

the Working Group wished to explore, consideration would need to be given to wording of 

the questions proposed to be asked. An example of a question could be: 

“Do you consider yourself a resident of Grantham or a resident of a parish or village?” 

2.7 In order to ensure that the drop-in sessions or workshops are targeted to the specific 

residents identified by the Working Group, a letter could be sent solely to those properties 

inviting them to attend. 

8



 
 

2.8 Engagement with Parish Councils will also form an essential part of this further 

consultation process. It is therefore recommended that Officers contact all Parish Councils 

on the periphery of the currently unparished area of Grantham, requesting attendance at a 

future meeting to present and explain the Community Governance Review process and 

seek their views as to a potential location for the boundary of Grantham. 

3 Reasons for the Recommendation (s) 

 The Working Group is asked to consider and confirm the scoping of the next stage of 

further consultation in order that this can be developed and feed into a revised Terms of 

Reference for the review. 

4 Financial Implications  

4.1 A budget of £20,000 was approved as part of the 2022/23 budget setting to facilitate the 

Community Governance Review. Approximately £14,100 of this budget has been 

allocated to date for the first stage of the consultation. Therefore, the remainder of the 

budgeted allocation will need to support this additional consultation activity, together with 

subsequent formal consultation required as part of the Community Governance Review 

process.   

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Chief Finance Officer  

5 Legal and Governance Implications  

5.1 The Community Governance Review is being conducted in accordance with the provisions 

of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 (the 2007 Act) and 

statutory guidance issued in 2010 by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 

Government and the Local Government Boundary Commission for England. 

5.2 Section 93 of the 2007 Act requires Councils to ensure that community governance within 

the area under review will be reflective of the identities and interests of the community in 

the area and be effective and convenient.   

5.3 Where a review is conducted as a result of a community governance application or 

petition, section 93(8) of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 

requires the review to be completed within 12 months.  This requirement does not 

however apply where a Council has taken the decision to undertake a review. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Graham Watts, Assistant Director of Governance 

and Deputy Monitoring Officer 

6 Background Papers 

6.1 Report to Full Council – 26 May 2022 

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=4131&Ver

=4 

7 Appendices 

7.1 Appendix 1 – Map of the existing unparished Grantham area boundary with neighbouring 

parishes 

7.2 Appendix 2 – Map of the development sites, Grantham District Ward boundaries and 

neighbouring parishes 

9

https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=4131&Ver=4
https://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=261&MId=4131&Ver=4


This page is intentionally left blank



11

A
ppendix 1



T
his page is intentionally left blank



13

A
ppendix 2



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Notes from the meeting held on 29 April 2022
	4 Community Governance Review for Grantham
	Appendix 1_map_unparished_area
	Appendix 2_map_development_sites


